
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 17 JULY 2025 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 1.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 To receive as a correct record the Minutes of meeting held on 12th June 2025 (previously 

circulated).   
  
3. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chair  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Councillors of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Councillors are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are 
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Councillors should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Councillors are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
 Matters for Decision  
 
 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
5. Exempt Item  
 
 The Committee is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the 

following item:   
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the ground 
that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information, as defined in paragraph 
1 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”   



 

 
Councillors are reminded that, whilst the following item has been marked as exempt, it is 
for the Committee to decide whether or not to consider it in private or in public.  In making 
the decision, Councillors should consider the relevant paragraph of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  In considering their 
discretion, Councillors should also be mindful of the advice of Council officers.   

  
6. Existing Dual Drivers Licence (Pages 3 - 54) 
 
 Report of the Licensing Officer 
  
 The press and public will be re-admitted to the meeting at this point  
 
7. Late Night Refreshment - Compliance Project (Pages 55 - 58) 
 
 Report of the Licensing Officer 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Paul Tynan (Chair), Sally Maddocks (Vice-Chair), Louise Belcher, 

Gerry Blaikie, Martin Bottoms, Maria Deery, Martin Gawith, John Hanson, 
Margaret Pattison and John Wild 
 

(ii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Sarah Moorghen, Democratic Support - email 
smoorghen@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iii) Changes to Membership, or apologies 
 

 Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582000, or alternatively email 
democracy@lancaster.gov.uk.  
 
 
 

MARK DAVIES, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on 8th July 2025.   

 

mailto:democracy@lancaster.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 3 Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 37
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE  

 
 

Late Night Refreshment - Compliance Project   
 

Thursday 17 July 2025 
 

Report of Licensing Officer 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
To update members with the outcomes of a compliance project undertaken by Licensing 
Officers. 

This report is public. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Committee is asked to note the outcome of the project. 
 
1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 The retail sale of hot food and drink between the hours of 23.00 – 05.00 is deemed a 

licensable activity under the Licensing Act 2003. This is commonly referred to as late 
night refreshment.  
 
This activity must be authorised by means of an application for the grant of a 
premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 or by submitting a 
notification of a temporary event.  

 
This predominantly affects takeaway businesses but may include food kiosks and 
burger vans etc.  
 
 

2.0 Purpose  
 
2.1 The purpose of the project was to measure and improve levels of compliance across 

the district in premises providing late-night refreshment, not only in meeting licence 
conditions of those with a premises licence but to identify businesses that were not 
licensed and make them aware of their legal responsibilities under the Licensing Act 
2003.  
 

 
3.0 Inspection Regime  
 
3.1 Licensing Officers undertake proactive and reactive inspections of licensed premises. 

The purpose of an inspection is to ensure compliance with the operating schedule of 
the individual premise licence, including licence conditions.  

 
 

Page 55 Agenda Item 7



Conditions must always relate to one of the four licensing objectives: 
 

 Public Safety 

 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 Protection of Children from Harm 

 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 

They may include measures relating to the following. 
 

 Door supervision requirements, including numbers of staff and timing. 

 Specification of CCTV systems, retention periods, accessibility requirements 
and positioning. 

 Disposal of waste and litter, position of bins, waste contracts etc. 

 Right to work checks, including storage of ID documents. 

 Restrictions on delivery vehicles/parking causing obstructions. 

 Age verification and policy for delivery sales of alcohol. 
 

3.2 It is a requirement under section 57 of the Licensing Act 2003 that a premises has 
the full premises licence available on the premises and prominently displays the 
summary of the licence. This aids authorised officers visiting the premises in 
recognising the licence requirements and confidently take the next steps in terms of 
compliance and enforcement. 

 
3.3 During the inspection process, Licensing Officers engage with the responsible person 

at the premises, ideally the premises licence holder or designated premises 
supervisor (DPS) if the premises licence authorises the sales of alcohol. 

 A post inspection document is agreed and shared with the premises, including 
agreed timescales for improvement. 

 
4.0 Inspection results 
 
4.1 Licensing Officers inspected 35 premises that hold a premises licence providing late 

night refreshment. This involved Licensing Officers working 5 evening shifts over a 6-
month period.  

 

 19 premises were found to be fully compliant  

 16 premises were found non-compliant  
 
 The premises where minor non-compliance was identified were provided with advice 

and revisits carried out. Licensing Officers provided the premises with the inspection 
sheet with actions to be taken by the premises and a date that Officers would revisit 
the premises 

 
The majority of revisits completed were in response to the following non-complaince:  
 

 Premises licence summary not displayed and no full premises licence 
available to Licensing Officers upon inspection  

 Premises licence in previous business owner’s name  

 CCTV footage unable to be viewed by Licensing Officer or CCTV time and 
date incorrect  

 
4.2 During the revisit Licensing Officers assisted premises by providing (at a cost to the 

business) a licence summary/premises licence to each of the premises that did not 
have it in place. Application packs were provided to new business owners to enable 
them to transfer the premises licence into the correct name.  

Page 56



 
4.3 After completing the visits to each premises, Officers had planned to hold a large-

scale operation with responsible authorities such as the Police and Immigration.  
Licensing Officers do not believe that such an operation is required due to being 
satisfied that at the time of writing this report that, a high level of compliance has 
been achieved. 

 
 
5.0 Premises – Unlicensed Activity 
 
5.1 It is a criminal offence under section 136 of the Licensing act 2003 to carry out any 

licensable activity, such as late light refreshment other than in accordance with a 
Premises Licence granted under the act.  
 

5.2 In total 12 premises were identified to be carrying out late night refreshment without a 
premises licence.  Licensing Officers evidenced this by monitoring the local food 
sites, such as Just Eat, Uber Eats, Deliveroo and Lancaster and Morecambe Eats 
after 11pm at night, over a 4-month period.  All 12 premises were sent a letter  and 
informed that they must cease the sale of hot food/drink after 11pm, until such time 
that a premises licence authorising the activity is in place. 
 

5.3 Licensing Officers have monitored unlicensed activity at the premises by carrying out 
late night evening visits after 11pm. To ensure Officer safety, these visits were made 
in partnership with the Police; Bodycams were also worn. 

 
Licensing Officers informed the premises of their legal requirements to hold a 
premises licence and provided advice on how to make an application and offered to 
assist with the process.  

 
5.4 Licensing Officers felt that in line with the Council’s Corporate Regulation and 

Enforcement Policy a staged approach, by offering advice and support first, rather 
than prosecution was the best way forward with the project. This is due to some of 
the premises owners having difficulties with language barriers / understanding the 
licensing act requirements.  The Council’s Corporate Regulation and Enforcement 
Policy states the following “  

 
“An open, fair and proportionate approach will be taken in dealing with breaches of 

legislation, which are regulated and enforced by the Council. Raising awareness and 

promoting good practice in regulated areas is the first step in preventing breaches, and 

officers of the Council will signpost to guidance on aspects of the law where requested to do 

so.”  

 

“Whenever possible, best efforts will be used to resolve any issues where the law may have 

been broken without having to take formal action or referring the matter to the courts when 

the circumstances indicate that a minor offence may have been committed and the Council 

is confident that appropriate corrective action will be taken.” 
 
5.5 Since visiting the unlicensed premises, 3 premises have applied and have been 

granted a new premises licence to carry out late night refreshment, 7 premises now 
only carry out the sale of hot food and drinks until 11pm and 2 premises have closed 
permanently.   

 
 
 
 

Page 57



 
6.0 Conclusions 
 
6.1 The importance of undertaking these types of projects is to ensure that premises 

licensed in the late, night-time economy are monitored.  It is important that Officers 
have a presence within the premises and viewed as approachable for advice and 
support. This will ensure good levels of compliance are achieved and maintained.  

 
6.2 Following visits to all 35 premises, Licensing Officers are satisfied that at the time of 

writing this report that there is a high level of compliance with premises offering late-
night refreshment in the district.  

 
6.3 To ensure high levels of compliance are maintained Licensing Officers plan to revisit 

all late-night refreshments premises annually, additionally when a change of 
premises management by way of application to transfer the premises licence. 

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Financial Services have been consulted and there are no financial implications. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
Any person aggrieved by a condition attached to a licence has the right of appeal to the 
Magistrates Court. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 

Contact Officer: Miss Sarah Jones 
Telephone:  01524 582766 
E-mail: sljones@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: SLJ/Oplatenight 

 

Page 58


	Agenda
	6 Existing Dual Drivers Licence
	APPENDIX 1 - email
	APPENDIX 2 - DVLA LETTER
	APPENDIX 3 - DVLA SUMMARY
	APPENDIX 4 - Committee report 2022
	APPENDIX 5 - Committee report November 2023

	7 Late Night Refreshment - Compliance Project

